
 
                                  

 
 
                                                            

AGENDA 
 

For a meeting of the 

HEALTHY ENVIRONMENT DEVELOPMENT AND SCRUTINY PANEL 
to be held on 

TUESDAY, 7 NOVEMBER 2006 
at 

2.30 PM 
in 

THE MEETING ROOM, MERES LEISURE CENTRE, TRENT ROAD, 
GRANTHAM 

Duncan Kerr, Chief Executive    

 

Panel 
Members: 

Councillor David Brailsford, Councillor Elizabeth Channell, Councillor 
Nick Craft (Vice-Chairman), Councillor Donald Fisher, Councillor 
Bryan Helyar, Councillor Fereshteh Hurst, Councillor Stan Pease, 
Councillor Mrs Margery Radley and Councillor Jeff Thompson 
(Chairman) 

  
 
Scrutiny Officer: Paul Morrison 01476 406512 p.morrison@southkesteven.gov.uk 
Scrutiny Support  
Officer: Jo Toomey 01476 406152 j.toomey@southkesteven.gov.uk 
  

 

Members of the Panel are invited to attend the above meeting to 
consider the items of business listed below. 

 
1. COMMENTS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 

 
 To receive comments or views from members of the public at the Panel’s discretion. 
  
2. MEMBERSHIP 

 
 The Panel to be notified of any substitute members. 
  
3. APOLOGIES 
  
4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
 Members are asked to declare interests in items for consideration at the meeting. 
  

 



5. ACTION NOTES 
 

 The notes of the meetings held on 5th September 2006 are attached for information. 
 (Enclosure) 

  
6. FEEDBACK FROM THE EXECUTIVE 
  
7. UPDATES FROM PREVIOUS MEETING 
  
8. GORSE LANE – UPDATE 

 
 The Panel will receive any updated information on Gorse Lane, Grantham following 

recommendations made at their last meeting on 5th September 2006. 
  
9. SHAPING ACUTE SERVICES IN LINCOLNSHIRE - 'CREATING THE FUTURE' 

 
 Panel members will discuss a response to the consultation paper: Shaping Acute 

Services in Lincolnshire – ‘Creating the Future’ from the Lincolnshire NHS Primary 
Care Trust. 
 
Copies of the consultation paper were circulated to all members at the Council meeting 
on Thursday 26th October. Should you require a copy of this document, please contact 
the Scrutiny Support Officer. 

  
10. CEDAR SYSTEM 

 
 The Vice-Chairman to report. 
  
11. REPORTS FROM WORKING GROUPS 

 
 o Update from the Deepings Leisure Centre Working Group. 
  
12. BEST VALUE PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

 
  (Enclosure) 
  
13. WORK PROGRAMME 

 
  (Enclosure) 
  
14. REPRESENTATIVES ON OUTSIDE BODIES 

 
 Representatives on outside bodies to give update reports. 
  
15. ANY OTHER BUSINESS, WHICH THE CHAIRMAN, BY REASONS OF SPECIAL 

CIRCUMSTANCES, DECIDES IS URGENT. 
  

 
At the end of the meeting, members of the DSP will go on a tour of the Meres Leisure 
Centre. 
 



WORKING STYLE OF SCRUTINY 

 

The Role Of Scrutiny 

• To provide a “critical friend” challenge to the Executive as well as external authorities 

and agencies 

• To reflect the voice and concerns of the public and its communities 

• Scrutiny Members should take the lead and own the Scrutiny Process on behalf of 

the public 

• Scrutiny should make an impact on the delivery of public services 

 

Remember… 

• Scrutiny should be member led 

• Any conclusions must be backed up by evidence 

• Meetings should adopt an inquisitorial rather than adversarial style of traditional local 

government committees 

 



 

1 

MEETING OF THE 

HEALTHY ENVIRONMENT 

DEVELOPMENT AND SCRUTINY 

PANEL 
 

TUESDAY, 5 SEPTEMBER 2006 2.30 PM 
 

 

 
PANEL MEMBERS PRESENT 

  
Councillor David Brailsford 

Councillor Elizabeth Channell 
Councillor Nick Craft (Vice-Chairman) 

Councillor Mike Exton 
 

Councillor Bryan Helyar 

Councillor Fereshteh Hurst 
Councillor Mrs Margery Radley 

Councillor Jeff Thompson (Chairman) 
 

OFFICERS  

 
Scrutiny Officer 

Scrutiny Support Officer 
Environmental Health Manager 
Senior Quantity Surveyor 

Sustainable Waste Management Policy 
Officer 

Energy Officer 
 

County Councillor Roy Chapman 

 
3 Members of the Public 
1 Member of the local press  

 

 

 
19. COMMENTS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 

  
Mrs. Mary Patrick of Stamford addressed the DSP about problems with the 
adaptation of tenants’ properties. Tenants had been waiting two years for 

the adaptation of their bathroom and she was concerned that the Council 
were not fulfilling their commitments. The Scrutiny Officer advised that as 

an issue that covered the remit of two DSPs, liaison with the Chairman of 
the Community DSP would be necessary. Mrs. Patrick had also submitted a 
question on this topic to the Council meeting on Thursday 7th September 

2006. 
 

CONCLUSIONS: 
 

1. To advise the Chairman of the Community DSP of the time 

delay for the adaptation of tenants’ properties; 
2. That should the response arising from the meeting of the 

full Council on 7th September 2006 be unsatisfactory, the 
relevant DSP should further investigate the problem. 

  

Agenda Item 5 



2 

20. GORSE LANE, GRANTHAM 

  

Before the meeting, members of the DSP went on a site visit to Gorse Lane, 
Grantham at the request of local residents. Concern over the condition of 

the roads had been raised at the Grantham Local Area Assembly on 7th 
June 2006. The issue had also been championed by the Grantham Road 
Users’ Group.  

 
At the meeting two residents of Gorse Lane explained the problems they 

had been experiencing; heavy goods vehicles had been using the road as 
an alternative route to travel between the A1 near Spittlegate Level, the A1 
entry near Wyville Road and the A607. The vehicles had damaged the 

edges of the road and because there was no footpath, the road was 
dangerous for pedestrians. Residents wanted to see a weight restriction of 

7.5 tonnes. A lot of vehicles parked on the verges while visiting a local 
business. 
 

Residents reported that Leicestershire County Council were prepared 
impose weight restrictions on any B road in the county but could not apply 

this to the part of Gorse Lane because it crossed the County border. The 
Lincolnshire County Council member for the area stated he would look into 

the County Council policy for imposing weight restrictions. If a weight 
restriction were to be imposed, waivers would have to apply for access to 
the local business. The intention of any weight restriction would be to force 

large vehicles to use more suitable roads. 
 

Residents stated that the problem had become worse since satellite 
navigation systems increased in popularity; the systems advised drivers to 
use Gorse Lane. 

 
To increase safety for pedestrians, Panel members suggested that the 

County Council should look into widening the road. This would mean 
vehicles would be able to pass more safely. Some members were worried 
that increasing the width of the road would increase the number of vehicles 

that parked along the verges which would only be minimally successful with 
yellow lines because of limited enforcement resources. 

 
Despite the involvement of the Grantham Road Users’ Group and the lead 
taken by the Gorse Lane Residents’ Group, there had been no involvement 

on a local level. One member suggested that to increase local support, 
Gorse Lane residents should contact their local Parish Council. 

 
CONCLUSIONS: 
 

The Panel recommend that: 
 

1. Lincolnshire County Council cost up a capital scheme to 
widen Gorse Lane, Grantham; 

2. A weight restriction of 7.5 tonnes should be applied to 

Gorse Lane, Grantham; 
3. Harlaxton Parish Council should become involved to 

increase the local support base; 

 



3 

4. The Department of Transport should be contacted to find 
out the criteria for including and excluding roads within 

satellite navigation systems; 
5. The Healthy Environment Portfolio Holder should be kept 

informed. 
  

21. MEMBERSHIP 

  
The Panel were notified that Councillor Exton would be substituting for 

Councillor Fisher for this meeting only. 
  

22. APOLOGIES 

  
An apology for absence was received from Councillor Pease. 

  

23. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

  

No declarations of interest were made. 
  

24. ACTION NOTES 

  

Noted. 
  

25. UPDATES FROM PREVIOUS MEETING 

  
An interim report by the Peterborough and Stamford Hospitals NHS 

Foundation Trust, detailing long-term plans for the Stamford Hospital site 
would be presented at the next meeting of the Panel on Tuesday 7th 
November 2006. 

  

26. ENERGY EFFICIENCY 

  
At the meeting of the Panel held on 6th June 2006, members of the Panel 
requested an update on the measures the Council were taking to achieve 

energy efficiency savings.  
 

In June it had been suggested that the Council should look at alternative 
means of producing energy for their buildings; the Panel put particular 
emphasis on the sport and leisure facilities within Grantham. 

 
Wind Power 

 
Three sizes of wind turbines were available: 1.5KWH, 10 & 20KWH and 
50KWH. If the 1.5KWH turbines were used, multiple units would be 

required to provide sufficient energy which would be unsightly and provide 
little gain at a large cost to the council. The site was not compatible with 

the 10 & 20 KWH turbines because of the proximity of houses; there would 
also be a cost to the authority with this option. 50KWH turbines owned in 
partnership would mean little or no cost for the council; however, like the 

10 & 20 KWH turbines, they were not suitable for the site. 
 

Solar Panels 

 



4 

 
Work had been undertaken to examine different types of solar panel. Some 

panels produced general electric energy while solar thermal panels could be 
used solely for heating water. 

 
Carbon Output 
 

The 100 day review of energy consumption was due to end on 12th 
September 2006. A survey had been carried out stating where savings 

could be achieved. Posters had been put up in various departments of the 
Council and energy presentations were being rolled out to staff. 
 

Panel members were interested in providing energy using an under-floor 
heating system. A trench would be dug around the building, into which 

pipework would be laid. Liquid would travel through the pipe network 
following the same principles as a boiler. 
 

There was much enthusiastic support for the idea of creating energy 
efficient homes. It was suggested that pilot schemes could be run where 

new developments of starter homes were being built. 
 

The Panel briefly talked about the opportunities for energy efficiency within 
the Council’s car pool and the withdrawal of the bicycle pool. 
 

Discussion ensued on whether there should be Council targets for the 
amount of energy saved. It was felt that energy efficiencies would be 

difficult to monitor because energy use depended upon many variables. 
 
CONCLUSION: 

 
The DSP recommend to the Healthy Environment and Economic 

Portfolio Holders that new developments that include starter 
homes, should be prototypes for energy efficient housing. 

  

27. INCENTIVISATION OF RECYCLING 

  

To coincide with the roll out of the Council’s new twin bin scheme, the 
Sustainable Waste Management Policy Officer was invited to talk about the 
incentivisation of recycling.  

 
The circulation of wheeled bins would begin on Wednesday 6th September 

2006. Each bin would be fitted with a chip; the only information the chip 
would hold was the address to which the bin belonged and the time and 
date that the bin was emptied. The equipment used to scan the chip would 

weigh the bin. All weights would be on a percentage basis of total waste 
produced. Incentives could be awarded on an individual, street, village or 

town basis. 
 
Panel members agreed that using incentives to get people to recycle would 

be more successful than penalising those who do not. The twin bin system 
would have been in operation for a year before any incentive scheme would 

be considered. 

 



5 

 
Some members were concerned that people would try to remove the chips; 

they would be difficult to remove because they were moulded into the 
plastic during manufacture. The bin would not be emptied if the chip was 

missing. 
 
The assisted collection service would continue after the introduction of 

wheeled bins, however new criteria for assessment would be developed.  
 

Households which were not eligible for wheeled bins would be issued with 
pink sacks for refuse and clear sacks for recycling. Properties would be 
exempt if there was no front garden and no access to a back garden from 

the road. 
 

Panel members congratulated the Waste and Contract Service team for the 
speed with which they had been able to initiate the twin bin. 
 

CONCLUSION: 
 

The Panel supported the introduction of incentives after the scheme 
has been in operation for a minimum of six months but did not 

support the introduction of sanctions for people who did not 
recycle. 

  

28. BEST VALUE PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

  

Noted. Updated BVPI information was circulated at the meeting. 
 
The average time taken to remove flytips had increased to 3 days; a 

number of reports appeared at first to have no traces of asbestos. When a 
team was deployed within one day of the report, they discovered asbestos 

and had to request specialists before disposal could take place.  
 
Other indicators had been affected by hot weather; the percentage of 

household waste recycled had dropped because of the lack of green waste. 
The street cleaning pass rate for town centres had also fallen as members 

of the public had been using communal areas and leaving litter. This had 
led to an increase in the number of fixed penalty notices that were issued. 

  

29. REPORTS FROM WORKING GROUPS 

  

The Vice-Chairman reported that the Deepings Leisure Centre Working 
Group had held their second meeting on 28th July 2006, at which there was 
representation from Market Deeping Town Council, Deeping St. James 

Parish Council and the Leisure Centre Manager. The working group were 
informed of the progress that had been made since the first meeting. 

Improvements had been made to the viewing gallery, ceiling tiles, coat 
hooks and the Welland room. Improvements to the Welland Room had been 
a joint project between the school and Leisure Connection. 

 
A request had been made for costing information for the replacement of 

floor and wall tiles in the wet changing room, the replacement of the cold 

 



6 

water storage unit and the complete internal redecoration of the leisure 
centre. It was hoped that recommendations for improvements could be 

included in the budget process for 2007/08. 
 

The next meeting of the working group was scheduled for 22nd September 
2006.  
 

CONCLUSION: 
 

Councillor Craft to provide an update from the Deepings Leisure 
Centre Working Group at the next meeting of the Healthy 
Environment DSP (7th November 2006) 

  

30. WORK PROGRAMME 

  
Noted.  
 

CONCLUSION 
 

1. To hold the next meeting of the Healthy Environment DSP 
on 7th November 2006 at the Meres Leisure Centre; 

2. The Panel should meet at the Leisure Centre at 1:45 for a 
tour. 

  

31. CLOSE OF MEETING 

  

The meeting was closed at 16:27. 
  

 

 



Healthy Environment DSP - Performance Monitoring 2006/07

IND Type =  C - Cumulative/% - Percentage/ CA - Cumulative Average/N - Number/A - Average

Reporting = blank - Monthly/Q - Quarterly/Y - Yearly/H - Half yearly (Sept)

PI SKDC Priority Area and PI Description
Lead 

Officer

IN
D
 T
y
p
e

R
e
p
o
rtin

g

2005/06 

SKDC 

Outturn

2004/05 

Upper 

Quartile 

2006/ 

2007 

SKDC 

Target

April May June July August

Are We 

Improv-

ing Yr on 

Yr?

2007/ 

2008 

SKDC 

Targets

2008/ 

2009 

SKDC 

Targets

RECYCLING Priority A

BVPI 

82a/b

Recycling - % of household waste recycled and composted 

(estimates until year end)

Garry 

Knighton
C 26.1% 26.1% 33% 28.6%* 29.2%* 30.5% 30%* 36.7%* Y 39% 50%

STREET SCENE Priority B

BVPI 199 Cleanliness of relevant land and highways 
Garry 

Knighton
% Q 12% 11% 9% 10% N 8% 7%

SK10 Street Cleaning pass rate for town centres 
Garry 

Knighton
% 95% N/A 96% 95% 100% 100% 92% 100% Y 97% 98%

SK11 No.of fixed penalty fines issued
Garry 

Knighton
C 352 N/A 300 24 51 66 98 172 Y 300 300

SK12 Average time taken to remove flytips
Garry 

Knighton
C 1 day N/A 1 day 1 day 1 day 1 3 1 Y 1 day 1 day

SK13 Satisfaction with street scene by Shoppers Survey
Garry 

Knighton
% Q 66.00% N/A 70% 78.95% N/A 75% 80%

Those indicators with a number in the PI column are from the Government's Best Value Performance Indicators suite used by many Councils.  The remaining indicators are local to SKDC and may be relatively 

simple measures/indicators only.  The reader is asked therefore to exercise an element of caution when interpreting any data attached to them.

A
g
e
n

d
a
 Ite

m
 1

2
 



DEVELOPMENT AND SCRUTINY PANELS (DSPs) 
WORK PROGRAMME 2006/7 

 
 

INTRODUCTION 
 

This Work Programme is partly derived from the Cabinet’s Forward Plan, but also contains items that have been 
brought forward by the DSPs themselves.  
 
Where the item has appeared on the Forward Plan, the anticipated date of the key decision is listed in the 
second column.  The third column shows the last available date that the full DSP can consider this item before 
the key decision is due to be taken (unless a special meeting is called). This does NOT necessarily mean that 
the item will appear on the DSP agenda, this will only happen if this is requested by the Chairman or members of 
the DSP. There will also be instances where there is no DSP meeting before a decision is due to be taken; in 
these cases the next meeting date after the decision date is shown. 
 
As Cabinet meets monthly and the DSPs meet bi-monthly it is not possible within the current timetable of 
meetings for the DSPs to consider every single Cabinet or Cabinet Member decision.  Scrutiny members are 
therefore encouraged to read this Work Programme and bring forward items for consideration where they think 
that an item should be considered by the DSP.  
 

HEALTHY ENVIRONMENT 
DSP 
 

   

ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION  Date item appeared on 
Forward Plan 

DATE OF KEY DECISION 
(IF APPROPRIATE) 
 

DSP MEETING /ACTION 

Hospital Provision in Stamford  N/a Issue to be revisited later in year 

Deepings Leisure Centre - future  N/a Update report on 07.11.06  

A
g
e
n

d
a
 Ite

m
 1

3
 



DEVELOPMENT AND SCRUTINY PANELS (DSPs) 
WORK PROGRAMME 2006/7 

 

Recycling incentivisation – 

consideration of financial incentives 

to encourage householders to 

recycle 

14.07.06 Not before November 2006 07.11.06 

Powers to restrict consumption of 

alcohol in public places – adoption 

of designated areas 

16.08.06 Not before Dec 06 

 

March 2007 

Considered by the DSP on 

06.06.06 

Approval of specification for the 

delivery of Leisure Services 

16.10.06 Not before November 06 07.11.06 or 16.01.07 

Service Planning Gateway reviews 16.10.06 Jan/Feb 2007 Special meetings 19.10.06 and 

05.12.06 

Consultative paper on shaping 

access acute services in Lincs  

N/a N/a Referred to DSP 

 

 


	Agenda
	5 ACTION NOTES
	12 BEST VALUE PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
	13 WORK PROGRAMME

